Christiansburg Planning Commission
Minutes of October 30, 2017

Present: Harry Collins
Mark Curtis
Catherine Garner
Jeananne Knies
Craig Moore, Chairperson
Jennifer D. Sowers, Vice-Chairperson
Andrew Warren, Secretary Non-Voting

Absent: Matt Beasley
Hil Johnson
Ann Sandbrook

Staff/Visitors: Will Drake, staff
Jared Crews, staff
John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc.
Rachel Potter, 2255 Giles Drive
Kristen Saia, 600 McDaniel Drive
James Pendleton, 2265 Glade Drive
Steven Wirt, 2250 Glade Drive
Yevonne Baker, 675 Curtis Drive
Elizabeth Whitlock, 2270 Glade Drive
Linda McMurray, Tailchasers Incorporated
Elijah Bowen, Blue Ridge Motion LLC

Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Christiansburg
Town Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia.

Public Comment

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment.

With no comments, Chairperson Moore closed the floor for public comment.



October 30, 2017 page 2

Approval of Planning Commission Minutes for October 16, 2017 Meeting

Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Commissioner Garner made a motion
to approve the October 16, 2017 Planning Commission meeting minutes.
Commissioner Sowers seconded the motion, which passed 5-0. Commissioner
Knies abstained as she was not present for the October 16, 2017 meeting.

Public Hearing for a rezoning request by John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc., agent for Sarah
Crawford, for approximately 13.071 acres of property (Tax Max Nos. 530-(2)-85b, 86A,
and Portions of Tax Max No. 530-(A)-1) located on the corner of Glade Drive SE and
Curtis Drive SE from A, Agricultural to R-3, Multi-Family Residential. The property is
designated as Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the 2013 Christiansburg
Comprehensive Plan.

Chairperson Moore opened the Public Hearing.

John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc., stated Golden Triangle Development is seeking to
develop the property into a Planned Housing Development. Mr. Neel explained
Golden Triangle has developed patio homes in Windsong Heights as well as the
Senneca Springs Planned Housing Development. Mr. Neel noted the proposed
development would be similar to Senneca Springs.

Mr. Neel stated VDOT was supposed to place a stormwater retention pond just
above the property alongside 1-81 when the interstate was expanded but the pond
has not yet been installed. Mr. Neel stated the developers are requesting to partner
with VDOT and the Town to develop this pond to be used by both VDOT and the
proposed development. Mr. Neel noted the developers have a secondary plan that
would involve placing their own pond on the property and eliminating some of the
development’s proposed lots.

Mr. Neel stated the developers intend to extend water mains to the development
from Giles Drive and Glade Drive and install a neighborhood park at the rear of the
property. Mr. Neel stated greenspace along Glade Drive would be maintained as a
buffer. Mr. Neel stated the developers would also support the placement of a traffic
signal at the intersection of Tower Road and Roanoke Street.

Mr. Neel noted domestic water pressure in the area is acceptable for domestic use
in the proposed development but lower than required for fire flow.

Bud Brusseau, 655 Curtis Drive, stated he is concerned about the extension of the
water mains as water pressure is already low in the neighborhood. Mr. Brusseau
stated a new pumping station was supposed to be installed along with the latest
homes added to Glade Drive. Mr. Brusseau noted traffic could be a concern as
many children play in the area and traffic travels faster than appropriate.



October 30, 2017 page 3

Public Hearing for a rezoning request by John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc., agent for Sarah
Crawford, for approximately 13.071 acres of property (Tax Max Nos. 530-(2)-85b, 86A,
and Portions of Tax Max No. 530-(A)-1) located on the corner of Glade Drive SE and
Curtis Drive SE from A, Agricultural to R-3, Multi-Family Residential. The property is
designated as Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the 2013 Christiansburg
Comprehensive Plan — (continued).

Mr. Brusseau expressed concern with the request for R-3 zoning because if the
proposed development is not constructed, a new developer could theoretically install
apartments or condominiums. Mr. Cutis explained only a ten-foot buffer zone would
exist between Curtis Drive, leading to increased noise from I-81 and a loss of
scenery.

Rachel Potter, 2255 Giles Drive, stated traffic would increase and congest the
neighborhood, especially if traffic is diverted from the interstate in the case of a
crash. Mrs. Potter explained she is worried about the safety of her husband who is in
law enforcement as his patrol vehicle is parked in front of their residence.

Kristen Saia, 600 McDaniel Drive, stated she supports the installment of a traffic light
at Tower Road and Roanoke Street but noted most people in the development
would likely use McDaniel Drive to travel to Falling Branch Road for its access to
460 and I-81. Ms. Saia stated the hill on the south end of McDaniel Drive is
dangerous and increased traffic would lead to further issues. Ms. Saia requested a
second stop sign be placed on Falling Branch Road as it approaches McDaniel
Drive due to visibility issues.

James Pendleton, 2265 Glade Drive, stated there are many children in the
neighborhood and increased traffic would create a concern. Mr. Pendleton agreed
that the hill on McDaniel Drive is dangerous, especially in winter weather. Mr.
Pendleton suggested installing a road from the area currently proposed as a park in
the development to an area beside Falling Branch Elementary School. Mr.
Pendeleton also requested there be a guarantee that single-family houses will be
placed on the property.

Steven Wirt, 2250 Glade Drive, stated he has three children and would not feel safe
having the children outside with the increased traffic from the proposed
development. Mr. Wirt stated he is also concerned with noise from construction as
well as the work necessary to extend water, sewer, and electricity to the new lots.

Yevonne Baker, 675 Curtis Drive, stated she shares concern for neighborhood
children. Ms. Baker asked why the property could not be rezoned to R-1 Single-
Family Residential as opposed to R-3 Multi-Family Residential as she is worried
about the development falling through and a new developer installing apartments or
condos.



October 30, 2017 page 4

Public Hearing for a rezoning request by John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc.. agent for Sarah

Crawford, for approximately 13.071 acres of property (Tax Max Nos. 530-(2)-85b, 86A,

and Portions of Tax Max No. 530-(A)-1) located on the corner of Glade Drive SE and

Curtis Drive SE from A, Agricultural to R-3, Multi-Family Residential. The property is

designated as Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the 2013 Christiansburg

Comprehensive Plan — (continued).

Elizabeth Whitlock, 2270 Glade Drive, stated she has several children and recently
moved from Montgomery County into the Town of Christiansburg. Ms. Whitlock
stated she chose her home in town based on the lack of traffic in the neighborhood.
Ms. Whitlock agreed that there are safety concerns with McDaniel Drive and that R-1
zoning would be preferable to R-3.

With no further comment, Chairperson Moore closed the Public Hearing.

Contingent on the above item, Public Hearing for a Conditional Use Permit request by

John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc., agent for Sarah Crawford. for approximately 13.071

acres of property (Tax Max Nos. 530-(2)-85b, 86A, and Portions of Tax Max No. 530-

(A)-1) located on the corner of Glade Drive SE and Curtis Drive SE for a Planned

Housing Development consisting of up to 60 single-family dwellings in the R-3 Multi-

Family Residential District.

Chairperson Moore opened the Public Hearing.

Mr. Neel stated the developers would proffer that the property would only be used to
develop single-family housing and the developers would continue to work with staff
to ease the concerns of citizens. Chairperson Moore stated a proffer would remain
on the property even if ownership changes.

Mr. Brusseau stated McDaniel Drive is nearly impossible to travel in bad weather
and traffic congestion at the intersection of Tower Road and Roanoke Street was
already a concern. Mr. Brusseau suggested constructing a road from the
development to Falling Branch Road. Chairperson Moore explained the
development does not extend very close to Falling Branch Road and a road
extension of this nature would cross a significant amount of private property located
in Montgomery County.

With no further comment, Chairperson Moore closed the Public Hearing.



October 30, 2017 page 5

Discussion/Action on a Conditional Use Permit request by Linda S. McMurray, agent for
J & E Inc. for a Kennel (animal daycare/overnight boarding) at 569 North Franklin Street
(Tax Parcel 496-27-1A) in the B-3, General Business District. The property is
designated as Business/Commercial on the Future Land Use Map of the 2013
Christiansburg Comprehensive Plan.

Chairperson Moore opened the discussion. Mr. Warren explained Ms. McMurray had
provided staff with a list of standards that will be required of the kennel/daycare. The
Planning Commission discussed waste disposal and determined similar uses to the
proposed kennel exist in Town with similar requirements for waste disposal and
management.

Ms. McMurray stated 60 to 70 square feet per dog is recommended for play but only
20 square feet is necessary for kenneling. Commissioner Knies suggested adding
that the standards of Tailchasers, Inc. would change along with overall standards for
kennels.

Ms. McMurray explained the outdoor area for the dogs is about 350 square feet with
one area designated for small dogs and another for large dogs. Ms. McMurray noted
dogs over 40 pounds would be considered large and that dogs would be under
constant supervision.

Commissioner Curtis asked about dogs digging under fences and Ms. McMurray
stated cinderblocks or plants could be used to block the fence but she was currently
seeking advice from the installer of the fence. Ms. McMurray stated there will be two
gates leading into the play area and dogs will not be playing outside at night.

The following conditions were drafted:

1. Architectural fencing shall be a slat-type fencing or similar material, as
approved by staff. The fencing shall be a minimum 6-feet tall and shall be
installed prior to the starting of operations of the kennel use.

2. The site shall be maintained in a clean, sanitary and slightly manner.

3. There shall be a minimum of 20 square feet of indoor floor area per dog with
an additional 3.5 square feet of indoor floor area for each large dog.

4. The permit shall be subject to review by the Planning Commission in one
year.

Commissioner Collins made a motion to recommend Town Council approve the
conditional use permit with the conditions as drafted. Commissioner Garner
seconded the motion, which passed 6-0.

With no further comment, Chairperson Moore closed the discussion.



October 30, 2017 page 6

Discussion/Action for a Conditional Use Permit request by Elijah Bowen, Blue Ridge
Motion LLC, agent for Kevin Carter, for a private recreational facility (qym) at 492
Reading Road, S.E., Unit D (tax parcel 528-((A))-73) in the I-2 General Industrial
District.

Chairperson Moore opened the discussion.

Elijah Bowen, Blue Ridge Motion LLC, provided the Planning Commission with a
parking schematic showing ten spaces established for parking at the facility. Mr.
Warren stated the parking area was private and not a typical lot but explained a

minimum 24 foot drive aisle would be maintained between the parking areas.

Mr. Bowen stated posts with signage would be set to designate parking areas and
an 8 foot area will be maintained between parking spaces and the facility to serve as
a walkway. Mr. Bowen noted the property owner had granted him permission to
reserve and demarcate the parking area for his facility.

The following conditions were drafted:

1. There shall be no excessive noise between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

2. The permits shall be subject to inspections and approval of the facilities and
equipment by the Fire Marshall and Building Official. The Town of
Christiansburg requires that the applicant shall use and maintain the facilities
and equipment in accordance with the equipment manufacture’s guidelines.

3. The permit shall be subject to review by the Planning Commission in one
year.

4. At a minimum, ten (10) parking spaces shall be reserved and posted for this
private recreational facility only in substantial accordance with the Conceptual
Parking Plan dated October 27. 2017.

Vice-Chairperson Sowers made a motion to recommend Town Council approve the
conditional use permit with the conditions as drafted. Commissioner Curtis seconded
the motion, which passed 6-0.

With no further comment, Chairperson Moore closed the discussion.



October 30, 2017 page 7

Discussion on a rezoning request by John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc., agent for Sarah
Crawford, for approximately 13.071 acres of property (Tax Max Nos. 530-(2)-85b, 86A,
and Portions of Tax Max No. 530-(A)-1) located on the corner of Glade Drive SE and
Curtis Drive SE from A, Agricultural to R-3, Multi-Family Residential. The property is
designated as Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the 2013 Christiansburg
Comprehensive Plan.

Mr. Neel stated Town engineering staff indicated water pressure is acceptable for
domestic use, but not for fire flow. Mr. Neel stated extending and looping the water
mains from Glade Drive would help but not solve all issues. Mr. Warren explained
that fire flow standards require hydrants to flow at 1000 gallons per minute (GPM)
and the current hydrants flow at under 500 GPM. Mr. Warren noted the Fire Chief
and Town Engineer would need to approve a fire flow under the standard.

Mr. Neel stated he is willing to work with staff to figure out the best way to move
forward. Chairperson Moore requested additional information regarding water
pressure and fire flow. Mr. Warren stated he ask the Engineering Department
regarding any plans to place a pump station in this area.

Commissioner Curtis stated due diligence should be granted to traffic concerns. The
Planning Commission discussed traffic calming measures including the traffic light at
the intersection of Tower Road and Roanoke Street and stop signs, vegetation
control, and rumble strips on Falling Branch Road approaching McDaniel Drive.
Chairperson Moore noted this area was located in Montgomery County but it may be
possible to ask for the County’s assistance. Mr. Warren stated funding is being
requested for the traffic signal at the intersection of Tower Road and Roanoke
Street.

Mr. Warren noted the proposed development is not located in one of the Town'’s
urban development areas and suggested the Planning Commission visit the site to
better understand the proposed development.

Mr. Neel noted a small portion of the proposed development lies in Montgomery
County and steps are being taken to bring this area into the Town.

Mr. Neel stated there is demand for this type of development within a particular price
range. Vice-Chairperson Sowers stated retirees would likely be attracted to the
development.

Other business.

Chairperson Moore opened the discussion.

Mr. Warren stated staff had received a conditional use permit request for a
comprehensive signage plan which will be scheduled with Town Council next week.



October 30, 2017 page 8

Other business — (continued).

Mr. Warren announced Town Council approved the code amendment to permit
beauty parlors as major home occupations as well as April Collins’ request for a
beauty parlor at her residence on Circle Drive. Mr. Warren stated Town Council had
also unanimously approved Robert Young’s request for a towing and storage yard
on Bell Road.

Mr. Warren announced Todd Walters, Assistant Director of Engineering, is leaving to
become the Town Manager for New Market, Virginia.

Commissioner Knies asked about status of the traffic signal at Quin W Stuart
Boulevard and Peppers Ferry Road. Mr. Warren stated the project was still in its
design phase and staff would get an update for the Planning Commission.

The Planning Commission looked at plans for the intersection of Cambria Street and
North Franklin Street. Mr. Warren stated an Open House will be held on November
16, 2017 and information on the changes will be available.

Commissioner Garner asked about the status of Phase 2 of the Huckleberry Trail.
Mr. Warren stated the Town is working with the contractor.

The Planning Commission agreed to meet at the proposed development on Glade
Drive at 5:30 p.m. on November 20, 2017.

With no other business, Chairperson Moore adjourned the mfeting at 8:39 p.m.

b SN

Craig Mqgte, Chairperson ndrew Warren, Secretary Non-Voting




